Primary Location	Satellite Locations		
Northern California (Sac) California Gambling Control Commission Hearing Room 100 2399 Gateway Oaks Drive	<u>Northern California (SF)</u> Judicial Council of California Milton Marks Conference Center 455 Golden Gate Avenue San Francisco, CA 94102	Southern California (LA) Chino Hills Community Center 14250 Peyton Drive Chino Hills, CA 91709	
Sacramento, CA 95833	LIMITED CAPACITY	LIMITED CAPACITY	

### MINUTES OF THE MAY 12, 2022 COMMISSION MEETING

#### **OPEN SESSION:**

1. Call to Order.

Chair Paula LaBrie called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m.

2. Roll Call of Commissioners.

Roll Call of Commissioners was taken with Chair Paula LaBrie, Commissioner Cathleen Galgiani, and, Commissioner William Liu present at the Sacramento Location, Commissioner Eric Heins present at the San Francisco Location, and Commissioner Edward Yee present at the Los Angeles Location.

Executive Director Stacey Luna Baxter gave the meeting participation instructions.

- 3. Approval of Commission Meeting Minutes for:
  - A. March 24, 2022 Commission Meeting
  - B. April 7, 2022 Commission Meeting

#### Action:

Upon motion of Commissioner Liu, seconded by Commissioner Galgiani, and carried in a vote by roll call with Chair LaBrie, Commissioner Galgiani, Commissioner Heins, Commissioner Liu, and Commissioner Yee, voting yes; the Commission approved the Commission Meeting Minutes for March 24, 2022, and April 7, 2022.  4. <u>Consideration of Transfer of Limited Partnership Interest (Pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 19824(c),19850, 19852, and 19876; CCR, Title 4, section 12054: The Bicycle Hotel & Casino: The Bicycle Casino LP Pierson Family Trust – Survivors Trust, (Transferor) Christopher Young, (Transferee)</u>

Action:

Upon motion of Commissioner Galgiani, seconded by Commissioner Heins, and carried in a vote by roll call with Chair LaBrie, Commissioner Galgiani, Commissioner Heins, Commissioner Liu, and Commissioner Yee, voting yes; the Commission deemed the Transfer of Limited Partnership Interest request abandoned.

By concurrence of the Commissioners, Items 5 and 6A were heard as a group.

- 5. <u>Consideration of Initial Cardroom Owner Type License (Pursuant to Business and Professions Code sections 19850, 19851, and 19852; CCR, Title 4, section 12054):</u> Hacienda Casino: Hacienda LF, LLC Elizabeth Flynt, Manager Larry Flynt Revocable Trust, Member Elizabeth Flynt, Trustee, Beneficiary
- 6. <u>Consideration of A) Initial Cardroom Owner Type License: and B) Additional</u> <u>Permanent Tables (Pursuant to Business and Professions Code sections 19841(p),</u> <u>19850, 19851, and 19852; CCR, Title 4, section 12054 and 12472):</u> A. Hustler Casino: El Dorado LF, LLC Elizabeth Flynt, Manager, President, Director

Thomas Candy, Vice President, Treasurer, Secretary Larry Flynt Revocable Trust, Member Elizabeth Flynt, Trustee, Beneficiary

Action:

Upon motion of Chair LaBrie, seconded by Commissioner Yee, and carried in a vote by roll call with Chair LaBrie, Commissioner Galgiani, Commissioner Heins, Commissioner Liu, and Commissioner Yee, voting yes; the Commission approved the Initial Cardroom Owner Type Licenses for Hacienda Casino through December 31, 2023, and the Initial Cardroom Owner Type Licenses for Hustler Casino through May 31, 2024.

B. Hustler Casino: El Dorado LF, LLC

Action:

Upon motion of Commissioner Galgiani, seconded by Commissioner Liu, and carried in a vote by roll call with Chair LaBrie, Commissioner Galgiani, Commissioner Heins, Commissioner Liu, and Commissioner Yee, voting yes; the Commission approved the request for 21 additional tables, for a total of 91.  <u>Consideration of Initial Key Employee License (Pursuant to Business and Professions</u> <u>Code section 19854; CCR, Title 4, section 12054):</u> Roland Addison

<u>Comments Received from:</u> Roland Addison Stacey Luna Baxter, Executive Director, Gambling Control Commission

Action:

Upon motion of Commissioner Heins, seconded by Chair LaBrie, and carried in a vote by roll call with Chair LaBrie, Commissioner Galgiani, Commissioner Heins, Commissioner Liu, and Commissioner Yee, voting yes; the Commission referred the application to an evidentiary hearing.

 <u>Consideration of Initial Commission Work Permit (Pursuant to Business and Professions</u> <u>Code section 19912; CCR, Title 4, section 12054):</u> Empire Sportsmen's Association: Travis Livesey

Action:

Upon motion of Commissioner Galgiani, seconded by Commissioner Liu, and carried in a vote by roll call with Chair LaBrie, Commissioner Galgiani, Commissioner Heins, Commissioner Liu, and Commissioner Yee, voting yes; the Commission approved the Initial Commission Work Permit through May 31, 2024.

- 9. <u>Consideration of Initial Third-Party Proposition Player Services Employee Type License</u> (Pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 19984; CCR, Title 4, section 12054):
  - A. Blackstone Gaming, LLC: Worker: Terrance Fisher

Action:

Upon motion of Commissioner Yee, seconded by Commissioner Galgiani, and carried in a vote by roll call with Chair LaBrie, Commissioner Galgiani, Commissioner Heins, Commissioner Liu, and Commissioner Yee, voting yes; the Commission approved the Initial Third-Party Proposition Player Services Worker License through May 31, 2024.

B. Commerce Group, Inc.: Workers: i) Brandon Cream

<u>Comments Received from:</u> Brandon Cream JC Macalino, Designated Agent

Action:

Upon motion of Chair LaBrie, seconded by Commissioner Galgiani, and carried in a vote by roll call with Chair LaBrie, Commissioner Galgiani, Commissioner Heins,

Commissioner Liu, and Commissioner Yee, voting yes; the Commission referred the application to an evidentiary hearing.

By concurrence of the Commissioners, Items 9Bii through 9Diii were heard as a group.

ii) Jermaine Valrey-Stroud

- C. Faros Unlimited, Inc.: Worker: Tony Lieu
- D. Knighted Ventures, LLC:
   Workers: i) Gloria Jimenez ii) Daniel Kessenich iii) Gina Molina

## Action:

Upon motion of Commissioner Galgiani, seconded by Commissioner Yee, and carried in a vote by roll call with Chair LaBrie, Commissioner Galgiani, Commissioner Heins, Commissioner Liu, and Commissioner Yee, voting yes; the Commission approved the Initial Third-Party Proposition Player Services Worker Licenses through May 31, 2024.

iv) Hillary Mooney

## Comments Received from:

Yolanda Morrow, Assistant Director, Bureau of Gambling Control

## Action:

Upon motion of Commissioner Galgiani, seconded by Commissioner Heins, and carried in a vote by roll call with Chair LaBrie, Commissioner Galgiani, Commissioner Heins, Commissioner Liu, and Commissioner Yee, voting yes; the Commission approved the Initial Third-Party Proposition Player Services Worker License through May 31, 2024, with condition:

Beginning July 1, 2022, and every 90 days thereafter, Hillary Mooney must provide the Bureau of Gambling Control proof of ongoing efforts to resolve their Failure to Appear until resolved and proof of resolution is provided to the Bureau.

v) Francis Vahai

#### Action:

Upon motion of Commissioner Galgiani, seconded by Commissioner Heins, and carried in a vote by roll call with Chair LaBrie, Commissioner Galgiani, Commissioner Heins, Commissioner Liu, and Commissioner Yee, voting yes; the Commission approved the Initial Third-Party Proposition Player Services Worker License through May 31, 2024.

By concurrence of the Commissioners, Items 9E and 9F were heard as a group.

E. Players Edge Services: Worker: Angelica Castillo F. Workers: Jasmine Anaya

Action:

Upon motion of Commissioner Galgiani, seconded by Commissioner Liu, and carried in a vote by roll call with Chair LaBrie, Commissioner Galgiani, Commissioner Heins, Commissioner Liu, and Commissioner Yee, voting yes; the Commission approved the Initial Third-Party Proposition Player Services Worker Licenses through May 31, 2024.

- 10. <u>Consideration of Renewal Third-Party Proposition Player Services Employee Type</u> <u>License (Pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 19984; CCR, Title 4, section 12054)</u>:
  - A. Blackstone Gaming, LLC: Worker: Steven De Los Angeles

#### Action:

Upon motion of Commissioner Galgiani, seconded by Commissioner Yee, and carried in a vote by roll call with Chair LaBrie, Commissioner Galgiani, Commissioner Heins, Commissioner Liu, and Commissioner Yee, voting yes; the Commission approved the Renewal Third-Party Proposition Player Services Worker License through February 29, 2024, with condition:

Beginning April 1, 2020 and every 90 days thereafter, Steven De Los Angeles must provide the Bureau of Gambling Control proof of ongoing efforts to resolve his Failure to Appear and Failure to Pay fines until proof of resolution is provided to the Bureau of Gambling Control.

B. L.E. Gaming, Inc.: Supervisor: Uyen Phung

#### Action:

Upon motion of Commissioner Heins, seconded by Commissioner Yee, and carried in a vote by roll call with Chair LaBrie, Commissioner Galgiani, Commissioner Heins, Commissioner Liu, and Commissioner Yee, voting yes; the Commission approved the Renewal Third-Party Proposition Player Services Supervisor License through May 31, 2024, with conditions:

- 1. Beginning July 1, 2020, and every 90 days thereafter, Uyen Phung must provide the Bureau of Gambling Control with proof of efforts to satisfy her judgment(s) until resolved and proof of resolution is provided to the Bureau.
- 2. Beginning July 1, 2022, and every 180 days thereafter, Uyen Phung must provide the Bureau of Gambling Control with proof of efforts to satisfy their charge-off account until resolved and proof of resolution is provided to the Bureau.

By concurrence of the Commissioners, Items 11A through 11C were heard as a group.

- 11. <u>Consideration of Initial Tribal-State Compact Key Employee Finding of Suitability</u> (Pursuant to the Tribal-State Gaming Compact; CCR, Title 4, section 12120):
  - A. Agua Caliente Casino Resort and Spa Rancho Mirage Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians: Erika Mendoza
  - B. Black Oak Casino Tuolumne Band of Me-Wuk Indians of the Tuolumne Rancheria:

Robin Miller

C. Casino Pauma - Pauma Band of Luiseno Mission Indians of the Pauma & Yuima Reservation:

Edgar Agapay Jr.

#### Action:

Upon motion of Chair LaBrie, seconded by Commissioner Galgiani, and carried in a vote by roll call with Chair LaBrie, Commissioner Galgiani, Commissioner Heins, Commissioner Liu, and Commissioner Yee, voting yes; the Commission approved the Initial Findings of Suitability for Erika Mendoza through April 1, 2023, Robin Miller through November 1, 2022, and Edgar Agapay Jr. through March 1, 2023.

D. Cher-Ae Heights Casino - Cher-Ae Heights Indian Community of the Trinidad Rancheria:

Matthew Benton

#### Action:

Upon motion of Commissioner Yee, seconded by Commissioner Liu, and carried in a vote by roll call with Chair LaBrie, Commissioner Galgiani, Commissioner Heins, Commissioner Liu, and Commissioner Yee, voting yes; the Commission approved the Initial Finding of Suitability through July 19, 2024, with condition:

Beginning July 1, 2022, and every 90 days thereafter Matthew Benton must provide the Bureau of Gambling Control with proof of efforts to satisfy their civil judgement until resolved and proof of resolution is provided to the Bureau.

E. Chicken Ranch Casino - Chicken Ranch Rancheria of Me-Wuk Indians: Thomas Sipe

#### Action:

Upon motion of Commissioner Liu, seconded by Commissioner Galgiani and carried in a vote by roll call with Chair LaBrie, Commissioner Galgiani, Commissioner Heins, Commissioner Liu, and Commissioner Yee, voting yes; the Commission approved the Initial Finding of Suitability through March 28, 2023.

F. Chukchansi Gold Resort and Casino - Picayune Rancheria of Chukchansi Indians of California:

Bandith Thongprasith

#### Action:

Upon motion of Chair LaBrie, seconded by Commissioner Galgiani, and carried in a vote by roll call with Chair LaBrie, Commissioner Galgiani, Commissioner Heins, Commissioner Liu, and Commissioner Yee, voting yes; the Commission deemed the Initial Finding of Suitability application abandoned.

By concurrence of the Commissioners, Items 11Gi through 11li were heard as a group.

- G. Graton Resort & Casino Federated Indians of Graton Rancheria:i) Jose Bermudes Apolinarii) Fernando Moncada Hernani
- H. Hard Rock Hotel & Casino Sacramento at Fire Mountain Enterprise Rancheria of Maidu Indians of California: Marian Rizan
- I. Harrah's Resort Southern California Rincon Band of Luiseno Mission Indians of the Rincon Reservation:

i) Brandy Harrington

Comments Received from:

Marian Rizan Jason Pope, Chief Counsel, Gambling Control Commission Stacey Luna Baxter, Executive Director, Gambling Control Commission

#### Action:

Upon motion of Commissioner Galgiani, seconded by Commissioner Yee, and carried in a vote by roll call with Chair LaBrie, Commissioner Galgiani, Commissioner Heins, Commissioner Liu, and Commissioner Yee, voting yes; the Commission approved the Initial Findings of Suitability for Jose Bermudes Apolinar through January 6, 2024, Fernando Moncada Hernani through December 11, 2023, Marian Rizan through June 30, 2023, and Brandy Harrington through May 29, 2023.

ii) Michael Libby

#### Action:

Upon motion of Commissioner Heins, seconded by Commissioner Galgiani, and carried in a vote by roll call with Chair LaBrie, Commissioner Galgiani, Commissioner Heins, Commissioner Liu, and Commissioner Yee, voting yes; the Commission approved the Initial Finding of Suitability through February 22, 2024.

By concurrence of the Commissioners, Items 11J through 11M were heard as a group.

J. Jamul Casino - Jamul Indian Village: Avelino Urbano, Jr.

- K. Morongo Casino Resort and Spa Morongo Band of Mission Indians:i) Edgar Andradeii) Michael Russell
- L. Red Hawk Casino Shingle Springs Band of Miwok Indians, Shingle Springs Rancheria:

Wesley Mitchell

M. River Rock Casino - Dry Creek Rancheria Band of Pomo Indians: Leslye Brown

### Action:

Upon motion of Commissioner Yee, seconded by Commissioner Heins, and carried in a vote by roll call with Chair LaBrie, Commissioner Galgiani, Commissioner Heins, Commissioner Liu, and Commissioner Yee, voting yes; the Commission approved the Initial Findings of Suitability for Avelino Urbano, Jr. through July 31, 2022, Edgar Andrade through October 15, 2022, Michael Russell through February 21, 2023, Wesley Mitchell through October 2, 2023, and Leslye Brown through March 13, 2023.

N. Sycuan Casino and Resort - Sycuan Band of the Kumeyaay Nation: Ciara Nunez Crumrine

## Action:

Upon motion of Commissioner Yee, seconded by Commissioner Galgiani, and carried in a vote by roll call with Chair LaBrie, Commissioner Galgiani, Commissioner Heins, Commissioner Liu, and Commissioner Yee, voting yes; the Commission denied the Initial Finding of Suitability.

O. Table Mountain Casino - Table Mountain Rancheria: Eric Saechao

## Action:

Upon motion of Commissioner Liu, seconded by Commissioner Yee, and carried in a vote by roll call with Chair LaBrie, Commissioner Galgiani, Commissioner Heins, Commissioner Liu, and Commissioner Yee, voting yes; the Commission approved the Initial Finding of Suitability through October 2, 2022.

P. Tachi Palace Hotel and Casino - Santa Rosa Indian Community of the Santa Rosa Rancheria:

Tou Yang

## Action:

Upon motion of Commissioner Galgiani, seconded by Chair LaBrie, and carried in a vote by roll call with Chair LaBrie, Commissioner Galgiani, Commissioner Heins, Commissioner Liu, and Commissioner Yee, voting yes; the Commission approved the Initial Finding of Suitability through November 18, 2023.

By concurrence of the Commissioners, Items 11Q and 11R were heard as a group.

- Q. Viejas Casino and Resort Viejas Group of Capitan Grande Band of Mission Indians of the Viejas Reservation: Flerida Almonte de Steeves
- R. Yaamava' Resort & Casino at San Manuel Yuhaaviatam of San Manuel Nation: Aki Matsubara

#### Action:

Upon motion of Commissioner Liu, seconded by Commissioner Galgiani, and carried in a vote by roll call with Chair LaBrie, Commissioner Galgiani, Commissioner Heins, Commissioner Liu, and Commissioner Yee, voting yes; the Commission approved the Initial Findings of Suitability for Flerida Almonte de Steeves through December 31,2022 and Aki Matsubara through October 31, 2022.

12. <u>Consideration of Request to Withdraw Application for Key Employee License (Pursuant to</u> <u>Business and Professions Code section 19869; Title 4, section 12015 and 12054):</u> Seakngim Song

Comments Received from:

Seakngim Song

Jason Pope, Chief Counsel, Gambling Control Commission Stacey Luna Baxter, Executive Director, Gambling Control Commission Yolanda Morrow, Assistant Director, Bureau of Gambling Control

Action:

Upon motion of Commissioner Yee, seconded by Commissioner Galgiani, and carried in a vote by roll call with Chair LaBrie, Commissioner Galgiani, Commissioner Heins, Commissioner Liu, and Commissioner Yee, voting yes; the Commission denied the Request to Withdraw Application for Key Employee License.

- 13. <u>Hearing Pursuant to Business and Professions Code Sections 19870 and 19871 and CCR, Title 4, section 12060:</u>
  - A. Default Decision and Order In the Matter of the Application for Approval of Third-Party Proposition Player Services Employee Type License for Maylene Ross, (CGCC-2021-1118-9E)

<u>Comments Received from:</u> Kate Patterson, Staff Counsel, Gambling Control Commission

Action:

Upon motion of Commissioner Galgiani, seconded by Commissioner Heins, and carried in a vote by roll call with Chair LaBrie, Commissioner Galgiani, Commissioner Heins, Commissioner Liu, and Commissioner Yee, voting yes; the Commission approved the Default Decision and Order. B. Default Decision and Order In the Matter of the Application for Approval of Third-Party Proposition Player Services Player License for Jeremy Beverly, (GCADS-TPPL-025661)

Comments Received from:

Kate Patterson, Staff Counsel, Gambling Control Commission

#### Action:

Upon motion of Commissioner Yee, seconded by Commissioner Galgiani, and carried in a vote by roll call with Chair LaBrie, Commissioner Galgiani, Commissioner Heins, Commissioner Liu, and Commissioner Yee, voting yes; the Commission approved the Default Decision and Order.

C. Default Decision and Order In the Matter of the Application for Approval of Third-Party Proposition Player Services Employee Type License for Norman Merkel, (CGCC-2022-0106-7D)

<u>Comments Received from:</u> Kate Patterson, Staff Counsel, Gambling Control Commission Stacey Luna Baxter, Executive Director, Gambling Control Commission

#### Action:

Upon motion of Commissioner Yee, seconded by Commissioner Heins, and carried in a vote by roll call with Chair LaBrie, Commissioner Galgiani, Commissioner Heins, Commissioner Liu, and Commissioner Yee, voting yes; the Commission approved the Default Decision and Order.

#### **CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS:**

Items on the consent calendar will be taken up and voted on as a group. A Commissioner may request that an item be discussed, in which case it will be discussed separately at a later point in the meeting.

- 14. <u>Consideration of Initial Key Employee License (Pursuant to Business and Professions</u> <u>Code section 19854; CCR, Title 4, section 12054):</u>
  - A. Michael Ivan
  - B. Jonathan Lopez Herrera
  - C. Peggy Shirreffs
- 15. <u>Consideration of Renewal Key Employee License (Pursuant to Business and</u> Professions Code section 19854; CCR, Title 4, section 12054):
  - A. Nathan Ammaraphayak
  - B. James Bertrand
  - C. Bengsan Chumingshut
  - D. Andrew Collins
  - E. Erik Dade

- F. Jeffrey Farrell
- G. Jose Garcia
- H. Jason Giannini
- I. Kevin Huang
- J. Zachary Miller

#### K. Sara Parra-Aguilera

M. Scott Walker

### L. Daniel Pena

- 16. <u>Consideration of Initial Commission Work Permit (Pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 19912; CCR, Title 4, section 12054):</u> Casino Merced: Michael Lawrence Yer Xiong
- 17. <u>Consideration of Renewal Commission Work Permit (Pursuant to Business and</u> <u>Professions Code section 19912; CCR, Title 4, section 12054):</u>
  - A. Casino Merced: Sia Vang B. Empire Sportsmen's Association: Kate Hanson Erica Martin Fongsamouth Samonthy C. Napa Valley Casino: Ling Gao Wenling Li Jinhao Lin Jinping Tan
- 18. <u>Consideration of Initial Third-Party Proposition Player Services Employee Type</u> <u>License (Pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 19984; CCR, Title 4, section 12054)</u>:

Α.	2 Kings Gaming	, Inc.:		
	Workers:	Hyde Huynh	Raymond Mui	
В.	Blackstone Garr	ning, LLC:		
	Supervisor:	Jessica Sok		
	Workers:	Maria Amaya Escajeo	la	Christa Bradford
		Kristin Brewer	Ryan Brookter	Liz Cabrera Rivera
		Christian Cruz	Nikki Hernandez	Yuliya Hocza
		Mohammad Jan	Tsering Lama	Jazmine McMahon
		Ruben Moreno	Cathy Nguyen	
		Mercedes Pardinas P		David Pena
		Cassandra Sedillo Denia Villatoro	Leslie Silva Ochoa Angel Yepez	Raphael Singleton, Jr.
C.	F2 TPS, LLC:			
	Workers:	Anthony Adame	Joshua Adrian	Jonathan Chen
		Cam Chi	Juan Escobar	Sovan Koy
		Alonso Ledezma	Kuntha Ly	Alberto Molina
	Flores		•	
_		Tuan Nguyen	Steven Shi	
D.	Faros Unlimited,			
	Workers:	Linh Banh Mariah Quintanilla	Ryan Hinojosa Chave	2Z
F	Global Player Se			
<b>L</b> .	Worker:	Rogelio Marquez		
F.	Halcyon Gaming			
•••	Workers:	Jermaine Chargualaf	Ricardo Libby	Sabrina Rodriguez
		Michael Torres	,	
G.	KB Ventures:			
	Workers:	Louie Lopez	Deanna Miles	Dwight Simmons

Н.	KBCH Consultar Workers:	nts, Inc.: Antonio Aguilar	Darian Raney	
I.	Knighted Ventur Workers: Wagner	es, LLC: Sherrilyn Adana Jonathan John Cabal Jesse CervantesRosa Lino Garcia Olivry Kaylie Harrington Elizabeth Lorenzana	Lizbeth Ayala lero as Brandon Garmany Samuel Heaghney Frias	Dakota Brightwell Dejuan Campbell, Jr. Shui Keung Chow Rebecca Gomez Cassarah Martinez
		Trevor Martinez Andrei Mikhailov David Rivas Geovani Singson Londa Torres Amanda Wolin	Genesis Melosantos Cynthia Perez Alexander Salcedo Kong So Kai Bong Tse Maisia Xiong	Jorge Mendoza Shayvonna Richard Roshan Sapkota Sorphea Tal Manuel Villalta
J.	Players Edge Se			
	Workers:	Elizabeth Jenkins Kimberly Orellana-Art Billashington Xiong	Nalannie Lovan tiga	Amanda Miller Ny Oum
Κ.	Progressive Gar	<b>U</b>		
	Workers:	Jianjun Chen	Michelle Chi	Ru Jia
		Huiyi Li	Min Li	Xiao Mei Qiu
		Ling Sun	Xiuxia Sun	Meng Tang
		Peirong Wang	Qinglin Wu	Qian Yi Xie
		Li Xu	Bing Yang	Bao Liang Zhang
L.	Qualified Player			
	Supervisor: Worker:	Jenny Buckeridge Carrie Odil		
5.4				
IVI.	Worker:	Acazah Goodman		
19. Consideration of Renewal Third-Party Proposition Player Services Employee Type License (Pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 19984; CCR, Title 4,				
	ction 12054):			
	Blackstone Gam	ning, LLC:		
	Workers:	Mark Antista	Priscilla Del Palacio	Gary Griffin
		Robert Jordan	Andrea Lemos	Brianna Villasenor
В.	F2 TPS, LLC:			
	Worker:	Jessica Guzman		
С.	Faros Unlimited,	Inc.:		
	Supervisor:	Joanna Chihuahua		
	Worker:	Lin Ung		
D.	Fortune Players	Group, Inc.:		
	Workers:	Jianming Chen	Yuyan Tang	
Ε.	Knighted Ventur			
	Supervisors:	Robert Cortez Ricardo Munoz	William Del Cid Jasmine Rodriguez	Jacob Elmore Socheata Sim

Workers:	Joshua Smith Emily Aman Louie Edusada	Erick Canto Van Nguyen	Dawn Cook
F. Players Edge S			
Supervisor:	Noel Tibayan		
Worker:	Ka Ngai		
G. Progressive Ga			
Workers:		Tomeka Jones	Daniel Leung
LL Qualified Diave	Jiarong Liang	Michael Liu	Kuyly Say
H. Qualified Playe Worker:	Daniel Roque		
WORKEI.	Damer Roque		
20. Consideration of T	ribal-State Compact	Renewal Finding of Su	uitability as a Gaming
	<u>r (Pursuant to the Tri</u>	bal-State Gaming Com	<u>ipact; CCR, Title 4,</u>
section 12120):			
Reliable Security S		eliable Business Conc	•
		William Miller, Jr., Pres	• •
		Treasurer, Director, Sh	larenoidei
21. Consideration of I	nitial Tribal-State Cor	mpact Key Employee F	inding of Suitability
		Compact; CCR, Title 4,	
		y - Água Caliente Banc	
Pablo C		mber Price	Orlando Barrera
Vincent	•	lorma Rodriguez	
Jitzelth Valenzuela Lopez			
B. Bear River Casino Resort - Bear River Band of the Rohnerville Rancheria: Tricia Thomas			
	Id Resort and Casinon ngmuongthong	o - Picayune Rancheria	a of Chukchansi Indians:
D. Feather Falls Casino & Lodge - Mooretown Rancheria of Maidu Indians:			
	ha Parler		
E. Golden Acorn Casino & Travel Center - Campo Band of Diegueno Mission			
Indians of the Campo Indian Reservation:			
		ared Pena Bissell	scharia
F. Graton Resort a		I Indians of Graton Rar Denice Clemons	Vincent McCann
G. Hard Rock Hotel & Casino Sacramento at Fire Mountain - Enterprise Rancheria of Maidu Indians of California:			
		ai Vang	
		Jackson Rancheria of	Me-Wuk Indians:
	tierrez Elias		
	Jamul Indian Village:		
•	n Matsueda		1 P
-		lorongo Band of Missic	on Indians:
retzabe	th Navarro Zarco C	luany meu	

K. Pechanga Resort & Casino - Pechanga Band of Luiseno Mission Indians of the Pechanga Reservation:				
Thelma Ramos				
L. Red Hawk Casino - Shingle Spi Rancheria:	L. Red Hawk Casino - Shingle Springs Band of Miwok Indians, Shingle Springs			
Matthew Montano	Alexander Shipkalenk	0		
M. Soboba Casino Resort - Sobob				
Christina Figueroa		Takashi Nishida		
Joseph Stoner				
N. Spotlight 29 Casino - Twenty-N Erik Arana	line Palms Band of Missio	on Indians:		
O. Sycuan Casino and Resort - Sy	cuan Band of the Kumey	aay Nation:		
	Jessica Fondas Ryan			
P. Table Mountain Casino - Table				
Camille Galvan	Carlos Gutierrez			
Q. Tachi Palace Hotel and Casino		nmunity.		
Joseph Smigiel		in only.		
R. Thunder Valley Casino Resort	- United Auburn Indian Co	ommunity of the Auburn		
Rancheria:				
Saunak Desai	Jay Her	Estephen Romero		
S. Valley View Casino & Hotel - S	••	•		
Linda Bach	Karen Del Rio	Olive Naotala		
	T. Viejas Casino and Resort - Viejas Group of Capitan Grande Band of Mission			
Indians of the Viejas Reservation				
Noor Alquta	Abel Bituin	Joshua Keyser		
U. Yaamava' Resort & Casino at S				
Itzel Bardales Serrano		Kayla Griffiths		
Erik Martinez	Meakary Ngan	Seanna Quesada		
Erika Tanenbaum	Jennifer Wiltsey			
00. Open side notice of Denominal Tribel Otate Opening at Key Englances. Finding of Opitability				
22. Consideration of Renewal Tribal-State Compact Key Employee Finding of Suitability (Pursuant to the Tribal-State Gaming Compact; CCR, Title 4, section 12120):				
A. Agua Caliente Casino Palm Springs - Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians:				
Christopher Baruth	Zhi Kuang	Noreen Marchese		
Jose Montano	Jesus Sanchez	Salvador Sifuentes Jr.		
Lorena Tovar	Christopher Vadebon			
Paul Darling	Zhi Kuang	Giovanni Sagun		
B. Barona Resort and Casino - Barona Resort and Resort and Casino - Barona Resort and Re	arona Group of Capitan G	Frande Band of Mission		
Indians:	Indians:			
Hoa Bui	Michael Gannon	Jared Hahn		

- Hoa BuiMichael GannonJared HahnMirishahe IdriziFletcher LintonYing LiuJose PeraltaGregorio RodriguezBeatriz Serralde RangelJamin Steindorf
- C. Bear River Casino Resort Bear River Band of the Rohnerville Rancheria: Amber Lakey

D.	<ol> <li>Blue Lake Casino and Hotel - Blue Lake Rancheria:</li> </ol>			
E	Tyrone Bachus			
⊑.	. Cher-Ae Heights Casino - Cher-Ae Heights Indian Community of the Trinidad Rancheria:			
	William Mills			
F	Chukchansi Gold Resort and Cas	sino - Picavune Rancheria c	of Chukchansi	
	Indians:			
	Shor Morales	Nessi Phannaphob	David Porrazzo	
	Lao Yang			
G.	Colusa Casino Resort - Cachil De	He Band of Wintun Indians	s of the Colusa	
	Indian Community of the Colusa			
	Colton Carrere	Victor Herrera		
Η.	Eagle Mountain Casino - Tule Riv		River Reservation:	
		Susan Williams		
Ι.	Fantasy Springs Resort Casino -			
		Cynthia Magana Arriaga	Mariene Moreno-	
	Lopez Thomas Sedlock Feather Falls Casino & Lodge - M	Accretown Rancheria of Ma	idu Indians:	
J.	Adrian Wuest	iooretown Kanchena or Ma		
Κ.	Gold Country Casino Resort - Be	rrv Creek Rancheria of Mai	du Indians:	
	-	g Thao		
L.	Graton Resort & Casino - Federated Indians of Graton Rancheria:			
	Surya Sapkota			
Μ.	M. Harrah's Resort Southern California - Rincon Band of Luiseno Mission Indians of			
	the Rincon Reservation:			
	Jill Barrett	Fernando Hernandez	Raymond Sullivan	
N.	Jamul Casino - Jamul Indian Villa	-		
		Ivy Iniguez	Cristina Liera	
	Saul Salas-Dominguez Jr.	Richie Wallace	Nicholas Whited-Roy	
0	Jason Zoellner O. Morongo Casino Resort and Spa - Morongo Band of Mission Indians:			
0.	Jose Barragan	Marlina Gutierrez	Patrick Whitaker Jr	
Ρ.	Pala Casino Spa and Resort - Pa			
	Reservation:			
	Jerad Brown	Nicholas Lewis	Michael Lumalu	
Q.	Pechanga Resort & Casino - Pec	hanga Band of Luiseno Mis	sion Indians of the	
	Pechanga Reservation:			
	Roberta Cunningham	Racheal Herring Morales		
	Schuyler Lennartson	Shirley Liang	Lovell Lim	
	Henry Ly	Tho Nguyen	Ventura Rojas	
-	Anthony Tran			
к.	Rain Rock Casino - Karuk Tribe:	Prondo Sonaho-		
	Wayne Haldorson	Brenda Sanchez		

S. Red Hawk Casino - Shingle Springs Band of Miwok Indians, Shingle Springs Rancheria:				
Sophia Gutierrez	Danny Loundara	Naita Saefong		
Samantha Vang	•			
T. River Rock Casino - Dry Creek I				
Yi Li		uidiis.		
U. Soboba Casino Resort - Soboba	Band of Luiseno Indians.			
Heather Diaz	Todd Harrington			
	0	(Notion)		
V. Sycuan Casino and Resort - Syc				
John Baines	Shawn Baldi	Timothy Briggs		
Roberto Jardiniano		Lela Sandoval		
Souksamay Sengthong				
W. Tachi Palace Hotel and Casino				
Joshua Donahue	Jason Hedrick Allysa Unlayao	Melissa Monroy		
John Stewart	Allysa Unlayao	See Yang		
X. Thunder Valley Casino Resort -	United Auburn Indian Com	munity of the Auburn		
Rancheria:		,		
Nathan Banks	Angelica Gomez	Nicole Hancock		
Todd Hart	Michael Hollmann	David Schmidt		
Rosalie Stanek	Monder Hommann	David Commut		
Y. Twin Pine Casino & Hotel - Mido	letown Rancheria of Pomo	Indians:		
Samantha Knudsen	aletown Ranchena of Forno	indians.		
Z. Valley View Casino & Hotel - San Pasqual Band of Diegueno Mission Indians:				
	Laura Giuffreda	Daniel Gomez		
Ramona Ochoa		Dend of Mission		
AA. Viejas Casino and Resort - Viejas Group of Capitan Grande Band of Mission				
Indians of the Viejas Reservation:				
Eduardo Bautista	April Calabro	Daniel Espinoza III		
Martha Gawara	Aamer Moshi			
BB.Wanaaha Casino - Bishop Paiute Tribe:				
Pamela Frank				
CC. Win-River Casino - Redding Ra				
James Arnold	Robert Billet	Amanda Kaschke		
Action:				

Action:

Upon motion of Commissioner Heins, seconded by Commissioner Galgiani, and carried in a vote by roll call with Chair LaBrie, Commissioner Galgiani, Commissioner Heins, Commissioner Liu, and Commissioner Yee, voting yes; the Commission approved the Consent Calendar items 14 through 22.

## PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA:

None

## **CLOSED SESSION DISCLOSURE:**

Chair LaBrie disclosed the item below to be heard in Closed Session:

- I. <u>Litigation (Government Code section 11126(e)):</u>
  - K. Robert Russell Harris, Jr. v. California Gambling Control Commission, Sacramento County Superior Court (34-2021-80003737-CU-WM-GDS)
- II. Hearing Deliberations Pursuant to Government Code section 11126(c)(3):
  - B. In the Matter of the Application for Approval of Tribal Key Employee Finding of Suitability for Jonathen David Frankson, (CGCC-2021-0708-11G)
  - C. In the Matter of the Application for Approval of Third-Party Proposition Player Services License for East Sea Investment Group, Inc., Jiahua Yu, and Wanchun Huang, (CGCC-2021-0107-11)
  - H. Default Decision and Order In the Matter of the Application for Approval of Third-Party Proposition Player Services Employee Type License for Maylene Ross, (CGCC-2021-1118-9E)
  - I. Default Decision and Order In the Matter of the Application for Approval of Third-Party Proposition Player Services Player License for Jeremy Beverly, (GCADS-TPPL-025661)
  - J. Default Decision and Order In the Matter of the Application for Approval of Third-Party Proposition Player Services Employee Type License for Norman Merkel, (CGCC-2022-0106-7D)

# CLOSED SESSION:

- I. Litigation (Government Code section 11126(e)):
  - A. Eric G. Swallow v. California Gambling Control Commission, Sacramento County Superior Court (34-2016-800002402)
  - B. Lucky Chances, Inc. v. California Gambling Control Commission, Sacramento County Superior Court (34-2017-80002549)
  - C. Yavapai-Apache Nation v. La Posta Band of Diegueno Mission Indians and California Gambling Control Commission, Sacramento Superior Court (34-2018-00238711)
  - D. Manuel Corrales, Jr. v. California Gambling Control Commission, San Diego County Superior Court (37-2019-00019079-CU-MC-CTL)
  - E. Kris Kat, LLC and Steven C. Ayers v. California Gambling Control Commission, Sacramento County Superior Court (34-2019-80003142)
  - F. Elizabeth Flynt, et al., v. Rob Bonta, Nathan DaValle, Paula D. LaBrie, et al.; United States District Court, Eastern District of California (16 CV 02831 JAM EFB)
  - G. Lucky Chances, Inc., VC Cardroom, et al. v. State of California, California Gambling Control Commission, et al. San Francisco County Superior Court (CPF-20-517086)
  - H. Sutter's Place, Inc., dba Bay 101 v. California Gambling Control Commission, San Francisco County Superior Court (CPF-21-517433)
  - I. Harvey F. Souza v. California Gambling Control Commission, Sacramento County Superior Court (34-2096-80003287)

- J. Garden City, Inc. v. California Gambling Control Commission, San Francisco County Superior Court (PF-21-517466)
- K. Robert Russell Harris, Jr. v. California Gambling Control Commission, Sacramento County Superior Court (34-2021-80003737-CU-WM-GDS)
- II. Hearing Deliberations Pursuant to Government Code section 11126(c)(3):
  - K. In the Matter of the Accusation and Statement of Issues Against Lucky Chances, Inc., Rommel Medina, Ruell Medina, (OAH No.2015110463)
  - L. In the Matter of the Application for Approval of Tribal Key Employee Finding of Suitability for Jonathen David Frankson, (CGCC-2021-0708-11G)
  - M. In the Matter of the Application for Approval of Third-Party Proposition Player Services License for East Sea Investment Group, Inc., Jiahua Yu, and Wanchun Huang, (CGCC-2021-0107-11)
  - N. In the Matter of the Application for Approval of Third-Party Proposition Player Services Player License for Ryan Dale LaFountain, (CGCC-2021-0909-8A)
  - O. In the Matter of the Application for Approval of Third-Party Proposition Player Employee Category License for Traci Killingsworth Preston, (CGCC-2021-1118-9Cii)
  - P. In the Matter of the Application for Approval of State Gambling License for John Hee-Jong Park, dba Bell Jackpot Casino, (CGCC-2021-0422-4A)
  - Q. In the Matter of the Application for Approval of Third-Party Proposition Player Services Player License for Victor Dennis Espinoza-Downey, (GCADS-TPPL-024823)
  - R. Default Decision and Order In the Matter of the Application for Approval of Third-Party Proposition Player Services Employee Type License for Maylene Ross, (CGCC-2021-1118-9E)
  - S. Default Decision and Order In the Matter of the Application for Approval of Third-Party Proposition Player Services Player License for Jeremy Beverly, (GCADS-TPPL-025661)
  - T. Default Decision and Order In the Matter of the Application for Approval of Third-Party Proposition Player Services Employee Type License for Norman Merkel, (CGCC-2022-0106-7D)

## ADJOURNMENT

Chair LaBrie adjourned the Commission Meeting at approximately 11:15 a.m.